
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, September 2, 2008 at 
6:07 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive.      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

David Gibby, Councilor  
Don Hunt, Councilor 
Shelly Jenkins, Councilor 
Doug Peterson, Councilor  
 

Excused:   Gary Griffiths, Councilor 
 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, Chief Administrative Officer; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; Randy 

Daily, Community Development Director; Shawn Douglas, Asst. Public Works 
Director; Curtis Jones, Police Sergeant; Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder; other city 
staff and 5 citizens. 

 
A. Welcome & Roll Call  
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all those present.  He noted that all 
Councilmembers were present except Councilor Griffiths.  
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Councilor Gibby offered the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Burrows read a quote from Benjamin 
Franklin. 
 
C. Moment of Silence 
Mayor Burrow’s quote was followed by a Moment of Silence. 
 
D. Open Communications
Larry Hansen reported that he had a conversation with a Riverdale resident regarding the recent wind 
storm that blew off roof shingles and felled tree limbs.  The resident requested that the City provide 
dumpsters that the neighbors can share when events like this happen.  He reported that he spoke with the 
Assistant Public Works Director who stated that if the debris isn’t in the City right-of-way, that the City 
usually doesn’t get involved with private property.  Mr. Hansen reported that Roy City does have 
dumpsters that it allows residents to reserve and use, and stated that it may be possible to use some of 
the monies in the Garbage Fund to come up with a program that would allow dumpsters to be placed in 
neighborhoods in an emergency situation.   
 
E. Presentations and Reports   
1. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Burrows reported Rubio’s Fresh Mexican Grill will be holding a pre-opening celebration on 
Wednesday, September 3, 2008 from 5:30 to 7:30 p.m.  He stated that Rubio’s is requesting that 
customers make a $10.00 donation that will be given to the PTA of Riverdale. 

 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 1 September 2, 2008 

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 2 September 2, 2008 

2. Recorder’s Report (Review status of Council requested follow-up items) 
None 
 

F. Consent Items 
1. Approval of meeting minutes from:  

August 19, 2008 Council Work Session 
August 19, 2008 Regular City Council 

2. Appoint Lynn Moulding as an Alternate to the Falcon Hill Design Review Committee. 

3. Approve Class “B” Beer License for Rubio’s Fresh Mexican Grill, located at 4189 S. Riverdale 
Road. 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve the consent items.  Councilor Peterson seconded the 

motion. 

Call the Question:  
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
G. Action Items 
1. a. Untable Freeway Park billboard request.  

 
Motion: Councilor Jenkins moved to untable the request.  Councilor Hunt seconded the 

motion. 
 
Call the Question:  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

b. Consideration of Freeway Park billboard request. 
Randy Daily stated that this item was placed back on agenda because Reagan Sign presented the 
City with a video showing the placement of the sign on Freeway Park Drive.  He reported that he 
received a letter from UTA stating that Guy Larson will be representing UTA’s interest.  He 
explained that Attorney for Reagan Sign is out of town and unable to attend tonight’s meeting and 
therefore Mr. Larson is representing both UTA and Reagan Sign.  Mr. Daily reported that the sign in 
the video is about one-half the size of the proposed sign.  Councilor Gibby reported that as he looked 
at the video, he could tell the sign was smaller than was promised and felt that the video quality was 
poor as it was hard to get a good clear picture.  He stated that still photos would have been easier to 
see and doesn’t feel that the video helps him make a decision and if anything, it makes him more 
confused.  Councilor Jenkins reported she had the opposite experience of Councilor Gibby’s by 
viewing the video that was provided.  She stated that the size of sign that was depicted, when 
compared to the other signs in the area, was a good fit and that she would be in favor of a sign that 
size as it fits the applicable sign ordinance as an off premise sign and could be moved around so that 
it doesn’t obstruct other businesses.  Mr. Daily reported that based on the applicable sign ordinance, 
the size of a sign is determined by the occupied frontage of any property and that no single sign can 
exceed 300 square feet, which is half the size of the proposed sign.  Mayor Burrows inquired if a 300 
square foot sign would it fit under the applicable ordinance.  Mr. Daily replied that it would fit under 
the size requirement but not the occupation requirement.  He stated that there aren’t any signs in that 
area that exceed 300 square feet.  Councilor Hunt reported that when he saw the video in the packet, 
he felt that it didn’t look so out of place with the signage that was there and feels it did not create any 
visual impairment for the other signs.  He wondered if Reagan Sign would accommodate a smaller 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 3 September 2, 2008 

sign.  Mr. Daily replied that this is a conditional use request and that the Council can impose 
conditions upon any conditional use.  He feels that it would be a good compromise to keep the sign 
the same size as was portrayed in the video, as no sign up there exceeds 300 square feet that 
advertises any one business.   

 
Guy Larsen stated that he works with Reagan Outdoor Advertising and read the following statement: 
“due to lack of notice and sufficient time to prepare, it is necessary that I state that our presence and 
participation here is in no way intended to waive any rights or privileges we currently hold as a 
result of the City’s failure to make a decision in a timely manner”.  He reported that Reagan has been 
in business for 40 years and that they try to be community minded.  He stated that it was never asked 
of them to hold up a panel, but that it was their recommendation.  He noted that it was never 
suggested that the sign would be the same size and that it was mostly done for the benefit for the 
Piano Gallery.  He reported that they went through the trouble of raising a panel up so the neighbors 
could see what the sign would look like, but that they couldn’t get the Piano Gallery out there, so 
they filmed it.  Mr. Larson reported that the panel was approximately 14 feet by 24 feet with two 
men holding it and stated that they couldn’t raise up a bigger sign as two men wouldn’t be able to 
hold it and it could get caught by the wind.  He stated that they applied for the permit under 
Riverdale’s sign ordinance that existed in the past which allows for a sign of 672 square feet.  He 
stated that billboards are meant to be seen and that a 300 square foot sign doesn’t cut it as it can’t be 
seen from the freeway.  Mayor Burrows reported that the City was waiting for Reagan to provide the 
additional information that was previously requested and not the other way around.   

 
Councilor Jenkins reported that when Reagan made the application, they applied for a conditional 
use permit and wondered if they thought the City wouldn’t put any conditions on it.  She stated that 
this location is superior as it is almost level to the freeway and thinks that we could work together.  
She stated that she likes the sign being smaller and doesn’t think it will encumber the other 
merchants in an unfair way.  Larry Hansen read an excerpt from the official City Council minutes 
when Mr. Simonsen suggested getting a crane and hoisting up a panel that would be the same size as 
the proposed sign and that they would take photos and submit them back to the City Council.  He 
noted that this wasn’t a condition of the City but was a suggestion by Reagan’s own attorney.  He 
reported that when the City received the video clips, they felt obligated, in good faith, to put the 
request back on the agenda and that it shouldn’t have been a surprise.   

 
Mr. Larsen stated that they filmed the sign 3-4 weeks ago and that they immediately got it off to the 
City.  He stated that they never heard from the City until their attorney made a phone call to the City 
and indicated that 45 days has come and gone and that they were going to take this to court.  He 
reported that he received a call from Mr. Daily yesterday, on a holiday, saying it was on tomorrow 
night’s agenda.  He stated that he takes offense that he was called on holiday and had to drop 
everything as his attorney is on vacation.  He reported that he would like to see this thing tabled.  
Mr. Larson stated that he attended a Planning Commission pre-meeting and a Commissioner asked 
him about the sign.  He told him that they work with other cities and have raised panels up and then 
take them for a ride to see the panel.  He stated that his attorney misspoke, as they have never raised 
the panel of the real size.  Councilor Jenkins stated she feels this could work if they made it fit 
within the guidelines for the size of the sign.  She reported that she thinks this is a good location for 
a smaller sign and hopes they could work with Reagan conditionally to get a reasonable size sign 
that benefits them and the balance of the retail community on Freeway Park Drive. 

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 4 September 2, 2008 

Motion: Councilor Jenkins moved to approve the Conditional Use Request from Reagan Signs for 
an Off-premise Sign on Freeway Park Drive, not to exceed 300 square feet.  Councilor 
Peterson seconded the motion. 

 
Mr. Larsen stated that he appreciated the comments and wondered if the other sign companies went 
through a similar process, where the size of the sign was discussed.  Mayor Burrows replied that 
they did.  Mr. Larson inquired if the neighbors were satisfied with a larger sign, would the Council 
be satisfied with a larger sign of 672 square feet.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she is not willing to 
look at something larger.  Mr. Larson reported that Reagan has entered into a contract with UTA 
based on a projected revenue and that a smaller sign, that far off the freeway, is not going to sell that 
sign as it is not big enough to be seen from the freeway.  Councilor Hunt stated that Mr. Simonson 
reported that the agreement with UTA was not binding until the conditional permit was approved.  
Mr. Larson stated that was correct, but that it is not financially viable as the lessor is expecting a 
certain dollar amount.  He stated that he feels the Piano Gallery was misinformed on the sign 
placement and wouldn’t go on the drive to see the sign with them.  He reported that they have made 
an offer to the Piano Gallery for advertising.  Councilor Gibby reported that he is reluctant to have a 
sign there of this type, but would go along with a smaller sign.  He stated that the Council could 
approve a conditional use or table it to look at it some more.  Councilor Peterson reported that the 
sign in the video is twice the size of the Piano Gallery sign and that the Piano Gallery is upset 
because of the size of the Reagan sign and that it would block their sign.  He stated that the most 
telling thing was Mr. Larson’s comment that the sign is too far from the freeway as that has been the 
Council’s discussion all along and that it is not in the freeway corridor.   

 
Councilor Gibby called the question. 

 
Mr. Larsen stated that because the neighbors never came out and looked at the raised panel, he stated 
that they can raise the panel up which would be the accurate size and invite the Council to ride along 
to show that the sign won’t block or deter anything in the neighborhood.  He inquired if the Council 
would be comfortable with this option and be willing to table this item to allow them to do that.  
Councilor Jenkins stated that she stands by her motion.   

 
Call the Question:  
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
2. Consideration of purchase of a cab and chassis for snowplow truck.  

Shawn Douglas, Assistant Public Works Director, reported that due to the eight week turnaround, 
they are requesting to be allowed to purchase a cab and chassis for the snowplow truck.  He stated 
that the price of $64,078 is the state bid price.  He noted that this purchase doesn’t include the bed or 
sander.  Councilor Gibby inquired if the bid included the plow.  Mr. Douglas replied that it does not 
include the plow.  He stated that the truck will have a cab and rails on the frame.  

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve the purchase of a cab and chassis in the amount of 

$64,978 for snow removal and other works.  Councilor Peterson seconded the motion. 

Call the Question:  
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Jenkins; Aye, Councilor Peterson, Aye; Councilor Hunt, Aye; and 
Councilor Gibby, Aye.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 5 September 2, 2008 

3. Consideration of 300 West project settlement on Right of Way landscaping. 
Steve Brooks reported that this has been an ongoing matter for some time and that it started with the 
300 West Improvement Project.  He stated that Mr. and Mrs. Wesoloski are the homeowners and it 
was negotiated with them that any damage done to their property or landscaping during the 300 West 
Improvement Project would be replaced.  He reported that the contractor put in a few trees and 
shrubs when the project was finished but that they all died because the sprinkling system was torn 
out and that the contractor also left a mess.  Mr. Brooks reported that he negotiated with the 
Wesoloski’s and that they requested the services of the State Ombudsman, who ruled partially in the 
City’s favor and partially in the Wesoloski’s favor.  He stated that there is still a fair amount of 
landscaping work to be done and that the City has received a number of bids.  He reported that 
Eclipse Landscaping Specialist submitted the lowest bid at just under $24,000.  Councilor Jenkins 
reported that she has been contacted by the Wesoloski’s and that they expressed concerns from the 
onset of the project.  She stated that it was unfortunate as it seems that what could go wrong, did go 
wrong and that she is in favor of making them whole.  Councilor Peterson stated that he thinks it is a 
tough situation for those homeowners as they didn’t ask for the work to be done and thinks that the 
City ought to make good on this. 

 
Motion: Councilor Peterson moved to approve a settlement on the Right of Way of the 300 West 

project, not to exceed $30,000.  Councilor Gibby seconded the motion. 
 

Councilor Hunt inquired if there would be any additional costs.  Larry Hansen replied that there 
shouldn’t be any additional costs on this property and that since the budget has been closed on this 
project, monies will be used from the Capital Projects Fund to pay for this.   
 
Call the Question:  
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Peterson; Aye, Councilor Hunt, Aye; Councilor Gibby, Aye; and 
Councilor Jenkins, Aye.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. Consideration of Resolution #2008-38 adopting a K-9 handler agreement. 

Police Sergeant Curtis Jones reported that this Agreement outlines compensation for the K-9 handler 
while off duty and complies with FSLA policy.  Councilor Gibby stated that it is a good idea to offer 
some kind of payment for the time the K-9 handler spends training and feeding the dog while off 
duty.  Steve Brooks replied that this isn’t a new practice but that it just hadn’t been put in writing 
before.   

 
Motion: Councilor Peterson moved to approve Resolution #2008-38 authorizing execution of a 

Memorandum of Understanding Agreement with Canine Officer for the Police Canine 
Services and Responsibilities within Riverdale City.  Councilor Gibby seconded the 
motion. 

Call the Question:  
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Hunt; Aye, Councilor Gibby, Aye; Councilor Jenkins, Aye; and 
Councilor Peterson, Aye.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
H. Discretionary Items 
Councilor Gibby stated that he was unhappy facing the billboard issue and wants to see a change in the 
sign ordinance to ban any other billboards.  Larry Hansen reported that the Planning Commission has 
suggested a moratorium on billboards and that they will bring that sign ordinance back to the Council 
with draft language. 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 6 September 2, 2008 

 
Councilor Jenkins stated that she would like to see strategically placed recycling dumpsters around the 
City in order to promote a recycling mindset with the residents.  Mayor Burrows reported that Robinson 
Waste is reviewing that option and pricing it out.  He stated that staff will follow up with Mr. Robinson.   
 
I. Adjournment 
With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Peterson moved to adjourn 
the meeting.  Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at approximately 7:13 p.m. 
 
Attest:       Approved:    September 16, 2008 
 
 
_____________________________                          _________________________________ 
Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder   Bruce Burrows, Mayor  


	B.  Pledge of Allegiance
	C. Moment of Silence
	D. Open Communications
	E. Presentations and Reports  

